1 2 3 4 5	Town of Chester Board of Selectmen's Meeting Thursday, July 8, 2021 Municipal Complex Approved Minutes
6 7	I. Preliminaries
8	
9	Call the Meeting to Order
10	Roll Call
11	Pledge of Allegiance
12	Chairman's Additions or Deletions
13	Public Comment (10 minutes)
14	Approval of Minutes
15	Items for Signature
16	Fire Department Update
17	Class VI Roads: Green Road, Stowe Road Plow Contracts
18 19	Prioritize Encumbrances
20	Chairman's Announcements
21	Roundtable
22	Potential Non-Public Sessions
23	Adjournment
24	, ,
25	1.1 Call to Order
26	
27	Chairman Myette called the meeting of the Chester Board of Selectmen to order at 7:00pm.
28 29	1.2 Roll Call
29 30	
31	Selectmen Present:
32	Selectment resent.
33	Chuck Myette
34	Steve Couture
35	Steve D'Angelo
36	Jeremy Owens
37	
38	Selectmen Absent:
39 40	Stephen Landau
40 41	Town Administrator Debra Doda
41	
43	Members of the Public Present at various times:
44	
45	Phil Gladu, Acting Fire Chief
46	Nancy Myette
47	Mike Oleson, Road Agent
48	Robert Pellegrino
49	Corinna Reishus, Recreation Director – (Remotely)
50	Penny Williams – (Remotely)

51	
52	and other persons unknown to the Recording Secretary.
53	
54	1.3 Pledge of Allegiance
55	
56	Chairman Myette led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.
57	chairman rijette ied the attendets in the riedge of integration
58	1.4 Chairman's Additions or Deletions
	1.4 Chuir mun s Auditions of Deletions
59	
60	Shelter Permits were added to the agenda.
61	
62	1.5 Public Comment
63	
64	Chairman Myette opened the meeting to public comment at 7:01pm.
65	
66	As no other Members of the Public wished to be heard, Public Comment was closed at 7:02pm.
67	
68	II. Old Business
69	
70	2.1 Approval of Minutes
71	
72	An approval sheet for the previous meeting's minutes was sent electronically.
73	
74	2.2 Items for Signature
75	
76	All members reviewed and signed the items in the signature folder submitted electronically.
70	An members reviewed and signed the items in the signature folder submitted electronically.
	III Now Dusiness
78	III. New Business
79	
80	3.1 Fire Department Updates
81	
82	Acting Fire Chief Gladu noted the department has been very busy both call wise and around the fire
83	house. Two significant fires mentioned were Ace Hardware in Raymond and a house fire in
84	Hampstead. Chester was on the Hampstead scene for about four hours.
85	
86	Chairman Myette questioned if the call members were getting experience and being debriefed at
87	the out-of-town fire calls. Acting Fire Chief Gladu mentioned at the Hampstead, Call Member TJ
88	Lannan led a crew of three to fight the fire. When the fire fighters are regrouping everyone is
89	talking about what they saw or did or what is still left to do to fight the fire.
90	
91	Selectman D'Angelo asked what the coverage is in town when Chester is called for mutual aid.
92	When calls go out usually 8-9 members show up and only 3-4 are sent to a scene out of town.
93	
94	Many items that have been ordered the last few months are shipping. A battery-operated stretcher
95	to replace the manual stretcher on the ambulance is on order.
96 07	The Lieutenent's position has been noted intervally between the second second second second second second second
97 08	The Lieutenant's position has been posted internally. Interested parties have until the end of the
98	month to apply. Selectman D'Angelo inquired if there would be a hiring committee. Acting Fire
99	Chief Gladu and Lt. Buddy Menard will be conducting the interviews. While the criteria for the job
100	have stayed the same, an on-the-job shadowing program will be implemented for the position.

- 101 With the lack of Fire schools, a call was made to the State Fire Academy offering Chester Fire as a 102 possible location to host the class. Of course, all the hands-on would still be done at the Fire 103 104 Academy. Chairman Myette asked if there would be a possibility of getting a free seat in the class for hosting. Acting Fire Chief Gladu will ask but feels it may be impossible. 105 106 107 Town Administrator Doda mentioned one more quote for Fire Department parking lot paving is coming. There is around \$75K with the current CIP and the encumbered money for the project. 108 109 Acting Fire Chief Gladu stated a plan will need to be in place during the paving, so the vehicles are 110 available for calls. 111 3.2 Class VI Roads: Green Road, Stowe Road 112 113 114 Robert Pellegrino, 655 Fremont Road, which abuts Green Road a Class VI Road, stated that a few years ago, he was told by the Building Inspector that he could not access his property from Green 115 Road. Stowe Road, also a Class VI Road, has recently had $\frac{1}{2}$ a mile of erosion stone placed and is 116 117 being used to access a property. 118 119 Mr. Pellegrino stated to use a Class VI Road the Selectman have to vote to open the road for 120 maintenance and must a have bond in place according to RSA 236.9. Selectman Couture clarified 121 RSA 236.9 refers only to Class I, II, and III. 122 Road Agent Oleson mentioned he was contacted and asked what needed to be done in order to 123 access the property for logging. Road Agent Oleson requested at the owner's expense to place 124 125 erosion stone on Stowe Road to keep mud off Fremont Road. 126 127 Mr. Pellegrino asked now that the road has been upgraded, if it is maintained would the road be 128 considered a Class V Road? Road Agent Oleson explained that is only the case when a road is 129 maintained by the town, and this is not being maintained by the town. 130
- 131 Chairman Myette mentioned a house with all permits could be built on a Class VI Road and the132 maintenance and plowing of the road would be responsibility of the homeowner.
- 133
- Selectman D'Angelo asked if the town had an inventory of all the Class VI roads and how many ofthe road's lead into town-owned conservation land. Has there been any thought to convert to some
- 136 Class VI roads to trails? Selectman Couture mentioned there is an RSA that would allow this.
- 137
 138 Chairman Myette asked Town Administrator Doda to have Conservation investigate converting
 139 some Class VI roads in town to trails.
- 140
- 141 3.3 Shelter Logic Tent Permits
- 142

Mr. Pellegrino pointed out the Building Inspector is going to fine him eventually for not having
permits on two portable shelter tents on the property. The tents are 12x20 and can be picked up
and moved around the property. If a permit is applied for and the tent comes down another permit
will need to be obtained.

- 146 147
- 148 Chairman Myette advised all new regulations on tents came about after the circus tent came down

149 and killed people.

150

- 151 Town Administrator Doda will communicate with the Building Inspector about the RSAs and
- regulations on tents as he is not present at this meeting.
- 153
- 154 *3.4 Plow Contracts*
- 155

156 Road Agent Oleson is proposing an CPI increase and changes to the plow contracts for the year. The 157 CPI increase is 3.2% and the contract increase proposed is 3.68%. New hourly rates proposed are

- 157 CPI increas158 as follows:
- 159

6 Wheel dump truck with plow, wing, sander	\$110.00
6 Wheel dump truck with plow & sander	\$93.00
1 ton truck with plow & sander	\$80.00
1 ton truck with plow only	\$75.00
Backhoe (no guarantee, only when needed)	\$87.00

160

161 The largest increase is with the 6 Wheel dump truck with plow, wing, and sander. Currently we 162 have three, however the town needs at least five.

163

Selectman Couture suggested lowering the 6 Wheel dump truck with plow, wing, and sander to
 \$108 per hour for a total budget increase of 3.2%. All were in favor including Road Agent Oleson.

165 166

Road Agent Oleson is also proposing to change the pay guarantee. Currently the town has a lump
sum guarantee for the season. The State of NH and some towns have changed to a guaranteed

stipend for each day there is no snow. The proposal is for a one-hour guarantee Monday thru Friday
for no snow days.

171

172 Comparison from the last contract and proposed contract for guaranteed payment for the season if

- 173 there is zero snow are as followed:
- 174

	Trucks	FY 20-21	FY 21-22
			Proposed
6 Wheel dump truck with plow, wing,	3	\$8,000.00	\$108.00
sander			
6 Wheel dump truck with plow & sander	5	\$7,000.00	\$93.00
1 ton truck with plow & sander	1	\$6,000.00	\$80.00
1 ton truck with plow only	0	\$6,000.00	\$75.00
Total Guaranteed Nov 15 to April 15		\$65,000.00	\$95,590.00

175

176 If the town had an additional two 6 Wheel dump truck with plow, wing, sander for the season the

- 177 comparison is as follows:
- 178

	Trucks	FY 20-21	FY 21-22
			Proposed
6 Wheel dump truck with plow, wing, sander	5	\$8,000.00	\$108.00
6 Wheel dump truck with plow & sander	5	\$7,000.00	\$93.00
1 ton truck with plow & sander	1	\$6,000.00	\$80.00
1 ton truck with plow only	0	\$6,000.00	\$75.00

	Total Guaranteed Nov 15 to	April 15		\$65,000.00	\$119,350.00
179					
180	Vice-Chairman Owens motioned to accept the proposed contract with a 3.2% CPI increase.				
181	Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo –				
182	aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau –absent. With all in favor, the motion passed Landau				
183	absent.				
184 195					
185	3.5 Prioritize Encumbrances				
186 187	This subject will be discussed	difnoodod on b	1		
187	This subject will be discussed if needed on July 22, 2021.				
188	IV. Selectmen's Business				
190	IV. Selectmen's Dusiness				
191	4.1 Chairman's Announcemen	ts			
192	1.1 Ghan man 5 milliouncemen	65			
193	Chairman Myette announced	the following r	neetings for	next week:	
194					
195	Monday, July 12, 2021	Budget Comn	nittee Meeti	ng at 7:00pm	
196		0		Meeting at 7:00pm	
197				of of the	
198	Tuesday, July 13, 2021	Conservation	Commissio	n Meeting at 7:00pm	
199				0 1	
200	Wednesday, July 14, 2021	Planning Boa	rd Meeting	at 7:00pm	
201					
202	4.2 Roundtable				
203					
204	Vice Chairman Owens:				
205	Nothing to report.				
206					
207	Selectman Couture mentione			ered the solar power pr	oposal but feels it is
208	not plausible with the condit	ion of their roo	f.		
209					1
210	Selectman D'Angelo suggeste	ed having Maint	enance pair	it the town shed on Ray	rmond Road.
211					
212	Chairman Myette:				
213	Nothing to report.				
214	4.2 Non Dublic Coorien(a)				
215	4.3 Non-Public Session(s)				
216	Chairman Myette announced there are non-publics on reputation and pending litigation.				
217 218	Chairman Myette announced	there are non-	publics off I	eputation and pending	nugation.
218	Solartman D'Angolo motioned to go into non nublic section numericant to $01.4.2(II)$ (c)				
220	Selectman D'Angelo motioned to go into non-public session pursuant to 91-A:3(II) (c) reputation, and (e) pending litigation. Vice-Chairman Owens seconded the motion. A roll call				
220	vote was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau –absent. With				
222	all in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent.				
223	, , ,		,		
224	The meeting was closed to th	e public at 8:10) pm.		
225					
-					

226 Selectman D'Angelo motioned to come out of non-public session. Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, 227 228 Landau -absent. With all in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 229 230 The meeting was reopened to the public at 9:42 PM. 231 232 Selectman D'Angelo motioned to seal the minutes of the first non-public session, on Pending 233 Litigation, for a period of one (1) year. Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau –absent. With all 234 235 in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 236 237 Selectman D'Angelo motioned to leave the minutes of the second non-public session, on Pending Litigation, for an indefinite period. Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call 238 239 vote was taken Myette - aye, D'Angelo - aye, Owens - aye, Couture - aye, Landau -absent. With 240 all in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 241 242 Selectman D'Angelo motioned to seal the minutes of the third non-public session, on Pending Litigation, for an indefinite period. Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote 243 244 was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau –absent. With all 245 in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 246 247 Selectman D'Angelo motioned to seal the minutes of the fourth non-public session, on Pending Litigation, for an indefinite period. Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote 248 249 was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau –absent. With all 250 in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 251 Selectman D'Angelo motioned to seal the minutes of the fifth non-public session, on reputation, 252 253 for an indefinite period. Selectman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken 254 Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau – absent. With all in favor, the 255 motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 256 V. Adjournment 257 258 259 Chairman Myette moved to adjourn the meeting. Vice-Chairman Owens seconded the motion. A 260 roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, D'Angelo – aye, Owens – aye, Couture – aye, Landau – absent. With all in favor, the motion passed unanimously with Landau absent. 261 262 263 The meeting was adjourned at 9:45 PM. 264 265 Respectfully submitted, 266 Janis A. Jalbert 267 268 **Recording Secretary**